1989

Logan City v. Michael Stacey Thatcher : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This is an appeal from a judgment entered by the First Circuit Court, Cache County Division, upon a jury verdict of guilty of the Logan City ordinance school zone speeding offense. This court has jurisdiction over this appeal under Section 78-2a-3 (2) (c) U.C.A. 1953 as amended.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

1. Is Michael Thatcher not guilty of the offense because Logan City is bound by the law in Case No. 880451-CA which holds that the forms and practices in the apprehension and prosecution in this case are in direct conflict with Utah Statutory requirements and also constitute criminal prosecutorial practices denying due process?

2. Is Michael Thatcher not guilty of speeding in a school zone because the so-called school zone is a speed trap totally ultra vires of the Logan City ordinance and State Statutes because it is more than a city block distant from any school or school grounds and because no school or other pedestrian hazards existed?

3. Aside from the law of the Case (Issue 1 paragraph 1, supra), is Michael Thatcher not guilty of speeding in a school zone because Logan City and the Circuit Court denied due process in employing forms and practices in his apprehension and prosecution which were not only in direct conflict with Utah statutory requirements for those

proceedings but also constituted criminal ultra vires prosecutorial practices denying due process?

4. Does Sec. 77-7-18 - 21 deny due process because it prescribes citation contents designed to unfairly extort bail forfeitures and fines and because of facial threats of indiscriminate warrant issuance because of vagueness and because it authorizes judicial process terms to describe the citation?

RELEVANT STATUTES AND ORDINANCES

(All Utah Code Annotated 1953 references are underlined, i.e. "41-6-46" without other designation.

Utah State Statutes - Speeding Utah Enabling Statute

41-6-46. Speed regulations--Safe and appropriate speeds at certain locations--Prima facie speed limits--Emergency power of the governor.

(1) A person may not operate a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable and prudent under the conditions and **having regard to the actual and potential hazards then existing**, including, but not limited to when:

(a - d omitted)

(e) **special hazards exist with respect to pedestrians** or other traffic or by reason of weather or highway conditions.

(2) Where no special hazard exists, and subject to Subsection (3) and Sections 41-6-47 and 41-6-48, the following speeds are lawful. Any speed in excess of these limits is **prima facie evidence** that the speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful:

(a) twenty miles per hour when passing a school building or its grounds during school recess or while children are going to or leaving school during opening or closing hours, except that local authorities may require a complete stop before passing a school building or grounds at any of these periods.

(b and c and 3 omitted) (Bold face emphasis added)

**41-6-16. Provisions of act uniform throughout state--
Local regulations.**

The provisions of this act shall be applicable and uniform throughout this state and in all political subdivisions and municipalities therein and no local authority shall enact or enforce any rule or regulation in conflict with the provisions of this act unless expressly authorized herein. Local authorities may, however, adopt regulations consistent with this act, and additional traffic regulations which are not in conflict therewith.

10-3-701. Legislative power exercised by ordinance.

Except as otherwise specifically provided, **the governing body of each municipality** shall exercise its legislative powers through ordinances. (Bold Face emphasis added)

Logan City Speeding Ordinance

42-7-1. Speed Regulations--Maximum Speeds--School Buildings--Intersections, Crossing, and Curves.

(a) No person shall drive a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable and prudent under the conditions and **having regard to the actual and potential hazards then existing.** In every event speed shall be so controlled as may be necessary to avoid colliding with any person, vehicle, or other conveyance on or entering the highway in compliance with legal requirements and the duty of all persons to use due care.

(1) **Twenty miles per hours when passing a school building or grounds thereof during school recess or while children are going to or leaving school during opening and closing hours.**

(2 and 3 omitted)

(4) **40 m.p.h. on the following streets:**

400 North - Between Main Street and 1200 East

(Others omitted under 4)

(5 and 6 omitted) (Bold face emphasis added)

76-8-512. Impersonation of officer. A person is guilty of a class B misdemeanor if he impersonates a public servant or a peace officer with intent to deceive another or with intent to induce another to submit to his pretended official authority or to rely upon his pretended official act.

76-8-513. False judicial or official notice. A person is guilty of a class B misdemeanor who, with a purpose to procure the compliance of another with a request made by the person, knowingly sends, mails, or delivers to the person a notice or other writing which has no judicial or other sanction but which in its format or appearance simulates a summons, complaint, court order, or process, or an insignia, seal, or printed form of a federal, state, or local government or an instrumentality thereof, or is otherwise calculated to induce a belief that it does have a judicial or other official sanction.

Criminal Procedural Rules

77-35-1. Rule 1 - General provisions. (a) This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the "Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure."

(b) These rules shall govern the procedure in all criminal cases in the courts of this state except juvenile court cases. These rules are intended and shall be construed to secure simplicity in procedure, fairness in administration, and the elimination of unnecessary expense and delay. (Subsection (c) omitted)

77-35-3. Rule 3 -- Service and filing of papers. (a) All written motions, notices and pleadings shall be filed with the court and served on all other parties. (Subsection (b) and (c) omitted)

77-35-4. Rule 4 -- Prosecution of public offenses. (a) Unless otherwise provided, all offenses shall be prosecuted by indictment or information sworn to by a person having reason to believe the offense has been committed.

(b) An indictment or information shall charge the offense for which the defendant is being prosecuted by using the name given to the offense by common law or by statute or by stating in concise terms the definition of the offense sufficient to give the defendant notice of the charge.....

77-35-5. Rule 5 -- Information and indictment. (a) Unless otherwise provided, all criminal prosecutions whether for felony, misdemeanor or infraction shall be commenced by the filing of an information or the return of an indictment. Prosecution by information shall be commenced before a magistrate having jurisdiction of the offense alleged to have been

committed unless otherwise provided by law.
(Subsection (b) omitted)

77-35-6. Rule 6 -- Warrant of arrest or summons. (a) Upon the return of an indictment the magistrate shall cause to issue either a warrant for the arrest or a summons for the appearance of the accused.

Upon the filing of an information, "if" it appears from the information, or from any affidavit filed with the information, that there is probable cause to believe that an offense has been committed and that the accused has committed it, the magistrate shall cause to issue either a warrant for the arrest or a summons for the appearance of the accused.

(b) If it appears to the magistrate that the accused will appear on a summons and there is no substantial danger of a breach of the peace, or injury to persons or property, or danger to the community, a summons may issue in lieu of a warrant of arrest to require the appearance of the accused....

(c) (1) The warrant shall be executed by a peace officer. The summons may be served by a peace officer or any person authorized to serve a summons in a civil action.

77-35-7. Rule 7 -- Proceedings before magistrate. (a) (1) When a summons is issued in lieu of a warrant of arrest, the defendant shall appear before the court as directed in the summons. (Subsections (a)(2) - (f) omitted)

Citation Enabling Statutes

77-7-18. Citation on misdemeanor or infraction charge. A peace officer, in lieu of taking a person into custody, or any public official of any county or municipality charged with the enforcement of the law, may issue and deliver a citation requiring any person subject to arrest or prosecution on a misdemeanor or infraction charge to appear at the court of the magistrate before whom the person should be taken pursuant to law if the person had been arrested.

77-7-19. Appearance required by citation--Arrest for failure to appear--Collection of bail amounts by Office of Recovery Services--Motor vehicle violations--Disposition of fines and costs.

(1) Persons receiving misdemeanor citations shall appear before the magistrate designated in the

citation on or before the time and date specified in the citation.

(2) No citation shall require a person to appear sooner than five days or later than 14 days following its issuance.

(3) Any person who receives a citation and who fails to appear on or before the time and date and at the court specified shall be subject to arrest. The magistrate may issue a warrant of arrest and may order the Office of Recovery Services, within the Department of Social Services, to enforce collection of any bail amounts ordered by the court.....

(4) Except where otherwise provided by law, citations or informations, issued for violations of Title 41, Utah Code Annotated 1953, shall state that the person receiving the citation or information shall appear before the magistrate nearest and most accessible to the place of violation who has jurisdiction over the offense charged. If the citation or informationis issued for a violation within the geographical boundaries of any municipality or county precinct in which a justice court exists and in which a justice of the peace is currently serving, such court shall be deemed the nearest most accessible magistrate before whom such person shall appear; provided, however, that consistent with Section 78-4-5, informations or citations issued (6) It shall be the duty of clerks and other administrative personnel serving the circuit, juvenile, and justice courts to ensure that all citations for violation of Title 41, Utah Code Annotated 1953, are filed properly in accordance with the foregoing subsection and to refuse to receive citations that should be filed in another court.....

77-7-20. Service of citation on defendant--Filing in court--Contents of citations. (1) If a citation is issued pursuant to section 77-7-18, the peace officer or public official shall issue one copy to the person cited and shall within five days file a duplicate copy with the court specified in the citation.

(2) Each copy of the citation issued under authority of this chapter shall contain:

- (a) The name of the court before which the person is to appear;
- (b) The name of the person cited;
- (c) A brief description of the offense charged;
- (d) The date, time and place at which the offense is alleged to have occurred;
- (e) The date on which the citation was issued;

(f) The name of the peace officer or public official who issued the citation, and the name of the arresting person if an arrest was made by a private party and the citation was issued in lieu of taking the arrested person before a magistrate;

(g) The time and date on or before and after which the person is to appear;

(h) The address of the court in which the person is to appear;

(i) A certification above the signature of the officer issuing the citation in substantially the following language: "I certify that a copy of this citation or information (Summons and Complaint) was duly served upon the defendant according to law on the above date and I know or believe and so allege that the above-named defendant did commit the offense herein set forth contrary to law. I further certify that the court to which the defendant has been directed to appear is the proper court pursuant to section 77-7-21."; and

(j) A notice containing substantially the following language:

READ CAREFULLY

This citation is not an information and will not be used as an information without your consent. If an information is filed you will be provided a copy by the court. You MUST appear in court on or before the time set in this citation. IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AN INFORMATION WILL BE FILED AND THE COURT MAY ISSUE A WARRANT FOR YOUR ARREST.

77-7-21. Proceeding on citation--Voluntary forfeiture of bail--Information, when required. (1) Whenever a citation is issued pursuant to the provisions of section 77-7-18, the copy of the citation filed with the magistrate may be used in lieu of an information to which the person cited may plead guilty or no contest and be sentenced or on which bail may be forfeited. With the magistrate's approval a person may voluntarily forfeit bail without appearance being required in any case of a class B misdemeanor or less. Such voluntary forfeiture of bail shall be entered as a conviction and treated the same as if the accused pleaded guilty.

(2) If the person cited willfully fails to appear before a magistrate pursuant to a citation issued under section 77-7-18, or pleads not guilty to the offense charged, or does not deposit bail on or before the date set for his appearance, an information shall be filed and proceedings held in

accordance with the Rules of Criminal Procedure and all other applicable provisions of this code, which information shall be deemed an original pleading; provided, however, that the person cited may by written agreement waive the filing of the information and thereafter the prosecution may proceed on the citation notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

This de facto criminal action for the offense of speeding in a pre-textual and wholly ultra vires speed trap "school zone" was commenced in and on 400 North Street U.S. Highway 89 in Logan, Utah on December 16, 1988 by a city police officer while impersonating an officer of the Circuit Court by delivering to Thatcher a false Circuit Court judicial notice with numerous ultra vires fear engendering judicial titles and threats under a Circuit Court case number, captions and headings. A materially varied copy of the false judicial notice was filed by the policeman with the Circuit Court under the pretext that it was a "citation."

The Circuit Court, acting on the strength of the pretextual "citation" false judicial notice, issued a Delinquent Notice and mailed the same to Michael Thatcher after he inadvertently failed to appear within the time fixed. The court in the notice threatened Thatcher with the issuance of a warrant on January 30, 1989 unless he paid the

fixed bail of \$80.00 before that date. He paid the bail of \$80.00, entered the plea of not guilty, and demanded a jury trial. Following his plea of not guilty to the false judicial notice on the 7th day of February, 1989, an information was filed. A jury trial was held on March 2, 1989. Plaintiff moved to dismiss on the grounds that it was the law of the Karen Thatcher case and otherwise the law that the false judicial notice "tickets" denied due process and was a complete defense.

The judge received the Karen Thatcher Brief and decision in evidence and denied the motion to dismiss and excluded relevant evidence regarding the false judicial notice. At the close of the city's evidence a motion to dismiss and for a directed verdict was added on the grounds that 33 miles per hour was a legal speed at that time and place. The judge denied the motion. The case was submitted to the jury. Within a very few minutes after deliberations began the jury returned a verdict of guilty. Time for sentencing was waived, a fine was imposed and sentence suspended on condition of fine payment. A notice of appeal herein was filed on the 27th day of March 1989.

Statement of Facts

On December 16, 1988 Michael Thatcher was a 21 year old single student at Utah State University living at home in the Young Ward community west of Logan. He was driving his

car to Utah State University going east on Logan's Fourth North street, four lane U.S. Highway 89 and the main highway from downtown Logan to USU, to Logan Canyon and to interstate points north and east. (Tr. pg. 88 - 89, Add. pg. 1). The posted speed limit and the speed limit expressly fixed by Logan City ordinance for said highway was 40 miles per hour. (Tr. pg. 55, Add. pg. 9). As he was proceeding east at 33 miles per hour he was stopped by a Logan City police officer and was served with a false judicial notice. (Tr. pg. 53 and Add. Pgs. 2, 3 & 4). The "ticket" had a Circuit Court heading and case number and was variously designated as a "Summons," "Information," "Affidavit" charging him with exceeding a 20 m.p.h. speed limit in a school zone (Add. pgs. 2, 3 & 4). The Logan City police department had established the zones by signs and blinking yellow lights as a 20 mile per hour school zone (Tr. Pg. 48). The zone was ultra vires of two city ordinances and the state statute because it was more than a block from the Adams Elementary School and grounds (Add. pg. 1). There were no pedestrians visible from the highway within the so called "school zone" at the time (Tr. pg. 58). The nearest school or school grounds was located a full city block north of the Fourth North U.S. 89 ultra vires school zone (Add. Pg. 1). The State statute and Logan City ordinance authorizes 20 miles per hour school zones only in

"passing a school building or grounds thereof" (Add. Pg. 9 and 41-6-46). Another part of the same Logan City ordinance expressly provides a 40 miles per hour speed limit on Fourth North U.S. Highway 89 from Main Street Logan east to 1200 East which includes the ultra vires speed trap (Add. Pg. 9).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

This "school zone" speed trap was ultra vires of State law and the City ordinance and there were no pedestrian hazards. The use by the police and the Court of a false judicial notice in lieu of a "citation" ignores the law of an earlier case and denies due process. The Utah "citation" enabling act is unconstitutional on multiple grounds.

The police department has established an 20 m.p.h. ultra vires school zone speed trap in a 40 m.p.h. zone over a block away from any school or grounds (Add. Pg. 1 Map). The State statute and a City ordinance expressly limit school zones to roads passing by "a school or its grounds." The same city ordinance expressly fixed the speed limit at 40 miles per hour on this major highway. In addition there were no school or other pedestrian hazards at the time.

The absurdity of the ultra vires speed trap is compounded by the use of extra-legal ticket forms by the police and court. Rather than employing a legal "citation," the police officer serves false judicial notice under circuit court numbered heading falsely entitled a "Summons,"

"Information," and "Affidavit." (Add. Pg. 2, 3 & 4). Logan City and the Circuit Court have continued this illicit form practice in open hostility to the law and in contempt of a previous Court of Appeals case judgment and decision on this matter in which the City defaulted in brief filing and oral argument.

Utah's "citation" enabling statute violates due process by authorizing use in citations of false judicial designations such as "information," "Summons and Complaint," and threats of indiscriminate issuance.

ARGUMENT

- I. THE EXISTENCE OF THE GESTAPO STYLE SPEED TRAP, LONG ESTABLISHED BY THE CITY POLICE ON A MAIN HIGHWAY IN OPEN HOSTILITY TO BOTH ITS OWN ORDINANCES AND LIMITING STATE STATUTES IS A PRACTICE IN OUTRAGEOUS VIOLATION OF DUE PROCESS.

If it were not for the fact that these kinds of outrageous ultra vires official practices are the accepted and expected norm in Cache County local governments, this argument would appear to be so obvious as to be an affront to this Honorable Court. This case again raises the rhetorical question as to what kind of cumulative proof it will take for the appellate courts of Utah to recognize and deal forthrightly and effectively with the reality that in Cache County "they" have developed highly popular and officially mandated forms of de facto local governance which

are openly hostile to the rule of constitutional law and the state appellate jurisprudence, including hostility to the law of specific cases.

The relevant facts are clearly established by the official Logan City Map attached as Addendum page 1 infra. The subject "school zone" is U.S. 89 on Fourth North between Third East and Fifth East. The school and grounds pretext for the "school zone" is Adams Elementary School and its Adams Park grounds occupying the full city block from Fifth North to Sixth North and from Fourth East to Fifth East. The only streets qualifying for the 20 m.p.h. school zone in the Adams school area are those surrounding that block and no others. U.S. 89 Fourth North is a full block further south than the authorized school zone between Fifth and Sixth North Streets (Add. pg. 1).

The Logan City school zone ordinance Thatcher was cited and charged with violating was 42-7-1 (a)(1) which expressly limits the zone to "when passing a school building or grounds thereof" (Add. pg. 8 & 9). A later subsection of that same ordinance, 42-7-1 (a)(4), in designating 40 m.p.h. speed zones first designates this very stretch of U.S. 89 on Fourth North from Main Street to Twelfth East as a 40 m.p.h. zone.

The ordinance limitation on school zones to streets adjacent to "schools and grounds" is expressly imposed upon

municipal authorities by the state legislature in 41-6-46 (2)(a) and 41-6-16. These local speed traps remote from hazards on highways, imposed to raise local revenues would be perhaps the classical evil targeted by the state legislature by 41-6-16. The State legislature obviously mandated this protection to the public from the well-known propensity of local legislative bodies, police and courts to establishing speed traps for revenue raising purposes on main highways under the pretext of "school zones" regardless of the proximity of the "trap" to the primary school zone hazards.

The City police have, by setting up this illegal trap, violated the clear mandate of the sovereign state of Utah and its own municipal legislature for the purpose of extracting property in the form of illicit fine, bail money, etc. as an entrenched unconstitutional practice.

Even if arguendo, this had been a properly designated 20 m.p.h. school zone, the 33 m.p.h. would have been lawful because there were no school or other pedestrian traffic hazards within the view of the two policemen. One policeman was sitting in her parked pick-up looking for pedestrians to escort them across the highways with a hand-written stop sign. She testified that there were none (Tr. pg. 77 and 80).

The State statute 41-6-46 (1) and (2) and City Ordinance 41-6-46 make it very clear that even the 20 m.p.h. limit is only prima facie. It may be overcome by evidence as in this case where the two policemen and Thatcher all concurred that there were in fact at that time no observable school or other pedestrians in sight.

This local sovereign police violation of the State and City legislative limitations on the police authority is one of the clearest violations of due process of law.

The sum of the due process violations is incredible in this case:

"In general, when the sovereign has established rules to govern its own conduct, it will be held to the self-imposed limitation on its own authority, departure from which denies due process of law."

This citation is from 16C C.J.S. Con. Law Sec. 969 pgs. 265 & 266 citing Layton v. Swapp, D. C. Utah 484 F. Supp. 958, above which is noted:

"Implicit in concept of due process are ideas that government must follow its own rules and that it must do so within reasonable time."

The compulsory nondiscretionary nature of the sovereign's duty to follow its own rules is highlighted by a continuation of the same C.J.S. citation at page 266.

"and where a state has established procedure which comports with due process, state and local officials are bound to follow those procedures." (Citing Wold v. Lillie v. Kenosha County Sheriff, D.C. Wis., 504 F. Supp. 1 vacated on other grounds C.A.)

This locally popular notion that the police can establish school zones wherever they think there is a hazard and that rules are to be interpreted for the convenience and efficiency of the sovereign or its favored patrons is dispelled with finality by the case of Deseret Savings Bank vs. Francis, 62 Utah 85, 217 P. 114 (1923) and quoting from Supervisors vs. U.S., 4 Wall 435, 18 L.Ed. 419 as follows:

"The conclusion to be deduced from the authorities is that, where power is given to public officers, in the language of the act before us, or in equivalent language -- whenever the public interest or individual rights call for its exercise -- the language***though permissive in form, is in fact peremptory. What they are empowered to do for a third person the law requires shall be done. The power is given, not for their benefit, but for his. It is placed with the depository to meet the demands of right, and to prevent a failure of justice. It is given as a remedy to those entitled to invoke its aid, and who would otherwise be remediless.

"In all such cases it is held that the intent***which is the test, was not to devolve a mere discretion, but to impose 'a positive and absolute duty.'"

- II. IT IS A DUE PROCESS DEFENSE THAT THESE CITY POLICE "TICKETS" ARE ULTRA VIRES OF THE "CITATION" STATUTE AND CLASS B MISDEMEANORS. THEIR SERVICE IS FALSE IMPERSONATION, THE FORM IS A FALSE JUDICIAL NOTICE. THE DEFAULTING CITY AND CIRCUIT COURT HAVE "THUMBED THEIR NOSES" AT THIS COURT'S DECISION IN CASE NO. 880451-CA ON THIS VERY ISSUE.

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