1989

Logan City v. Michael Stacey Thatcher : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. LOGAN CITY AND/OR STATE OF UTAH MAY ESTABLISH A TWENTY MILE PER HOUR SPEED LIMIT NEAR A SCHOOL WHEN CHILDREN ARE GOING TO OR LEAVING SCHOOL DURING OPENING AND CLOSING HOURS.
2. A CITATION WITH A WRITTEN PROMISE TO APPEAR MAY BE ISSUED BY A POLICE OFFICER FOR A MISDEMEANOR OFFENSE COMMITTED IN HIS PRESENCE IN LIEU OF PLACING THE PERSON UNDER ARREST AND TAKING HIM INTO CUSTODY.
3. THE UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (1953 as amended) §77-7-18 THROUGH 77-7-21 IS NOT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE.

ARGUMENT

1

LOGAN CITY AND/OR STATE OF UTAH MAY ESTABLISH
A TWENTY MILE PER HOUR SPEED LIMIT NEAR A SCHOOL
WHEN CHILDREN ARE GOING TO OR LEAVING SCHOOL
DURING OPENING AND CLOSING HOURS

The Tenth Amendment to the United State Constitution provides that "The powers not delegated to the United States by the Constitution, nor prohibited by it to the States are reserved to the States respectively, or to the people."

Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §41-6-46 provides:

(1) A person may not operate a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable and prudent under the conditions and having regard to the actual and potential hazards then existing.....

(2)...the following speeds are lawful. Any speed in excess of these limits is prima facie evidence that

the speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful: (a) twenty miles per hour when passing a school building or its grounds during school recess or while children are going to or leaving school during opening or closing hours, except that local authorities may require a complete stop before passing a school building or grounds at any of these periods;... (emphasis added)

In the present case evidence was presented that thirty to forty children cross daily within the designated school zone on Fourth North of Logan City going to and from school (T. 75 Ln. 8-11). The first bell is at 9:15 a.m. (T. 80 Ln. 4-6). In fact, children have shown up as late as 9:22 a.m. (T. 79 Ln. 25). The Appellant was observed speeding in the school zone at 9:13 a.m. (T. 47 Ln. 15).

Further, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §41-6-47 provides:

- (1) (a) When the Department of Transportation determines upon the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation that any prima facie speed under this article is not reasonable or safe the existing conditions at the intersection or other place or on a state highway, the Department of Transportation may determine a reasonable and safe prima facie speed limit.....
- (2) The speed limit is effective when appropriate signs giving notice are erected at the intersection or other place or part of the highway. (emphasis added)

It appears from the facts of the case herein that the yellow flashing lights on Fourth North of Logan denoting a "school zone, speed limit 20 miles per hour", were established by the State of Utah. Fourth North is a state highway (T. 83 Ln. 4-8).

Therefore, even if this is not a school zone as Appellant argues, the speed limit of 20 miles per hour would be effective under Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §41-6-47(2) and under Logan City Ordinance

42-7-1(b) (2) providing "speed limits on state highways within the city limits shall be posted by the State".

Additionally and importantly, evidence was produced that 33 miles per hour was not reasonable nor prudent under the conditions and having regard to the actual and potential hazards then existing as prescribed by Logan City Ordinance 42-7-1 and Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §41-6-46.

As the arresting officer testified about traveling 33 miles per hour during the time of day the Appellant was in the Fourth North school zone:

There were several-quite a few children that use the street, live across the street, live south of Fourth North and they go to school which is on 500 North and Fourth East. They have to cross Fourth North, which is the main thoroughfare, in fact, it's a state highway running east and west in Logan City. It is a four lane high-road, traffic volume is very heavy, particularly at that time of day the kids are going, not only to grade school, but to the university, to and from to work and whatever have you, and these children are required to cross that street, and it is very hazardous to allow traffic to travel at that speed without endangering those children." (T. 55 Ln. 11-25, T. 56 Ln 1-3).

Clearly there was sufficient evidence upon which the jury could find the Appellant guilty of speeding in violation of Logan City Ordinance 42-7-1.

Finally, it is unclear from the record whether or not this issue was raised by Appellant in the lower court or is being raised for the first time on appeal.

A CITATION WITH A WRITTEN PROMISE TO APPEAR
MAY BE ISSUED BY A POLICE OFFICER FOR A
MISDEMEANOR OFFENSE COMMITTED IN HIS
PRESENCE IN LIEU OF PLACING THE PERSON
UNDER ARREST AND TAKING HIM INTO CUSTODY

First, this case was prosecuted under a formal written information (T. 39 Ln. 5-21, see Addendum Exhibit "B" also) as required by Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-35-4 and 77-35-5. Therefore, it appears that the arguments made by Appellant in regard to the citation herein are irrelevant.

Second, Appellant places a great deal of emphasis on the Court of Appeals decision in Logan City v. Karen Thatcher, No. 880451. That case was not decided on the merits but rather

Based upon the failure of Respondent Logan City, a political subdivision of the State of Utah and the prosecutor herein, to appear at oral argument or to file a brief herein, the Defendant's conviction is hereby reversed and the charge of driving on improper registration is dismissed.

A copy of the remitter in that case is on the Addendum to this brief.

Third, in regard to the citation itself, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-7-18 authorizes a peace officer in lieu of taking a person into custody to issue and deliver a citation requiring the person subject to arrest on a misdemeanor to appear before the Court.

Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-7-20 sets forth what a

citation must contain. It must contain

- (a) The name of the court before which the person is to appear;
- (b) The name of the person cited;
- (c) A brief description of the offense charged;
- (d) The date, time and place at which the offense is alleged to have occurred;
- (e) The date the citation was issued;
- (f) Name of the peace officer who issued the citation...;
- (g) The time and date or before and after which the person is to appear;
- (h) The address of the court in which the person is to appear;
- (i) A certification above the signature of the officer issuing the citation in substantially the following language: "I certify that a copy of this citation or information (Summons and Complaint) was duly served upon the Defendant according to law on the above date and I know or believe and so allege that the above-named Defendant did commit the offense herein set forth contrary to law. I further certify ahat the court which the Defendant has been directed to appear is the proper court pursuant to Section 77-7-21"; and
- (j) A notice containing substantially the following language: "READ CAREFULLY
This citation is not an information and will not be used as an information without your consent. If an information is filed you will be provided a copy by the court. You MUST appear in court on or before the time set in this citation. IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR AN INFORMATION WILL BE FILED AND THE COURT MAY ISSUE A WARRANT FOR YOUR ARREST."

The citation herein contained in the Addendum as Exhibit A clearly complies with Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-7-20. In fact, the citation on the back indicates that, "This citation is not an information and will not be used as an information without your consent". Furthermore, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-7-20 (i) refers to "a copy of this citation or information (Summons or Complaint).

THE UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (1953 AS AMENDED)

§77-7-18 THROUGH 77-7-21 IS NOT

UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE

As previously noted, this case was prosecuted under a formal written information (T. 39 Ln. 5-21 & see Addendum Exhibit "B" also) as required by Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-35-4 and 77-35-5. Therefore, it appears that the arguments made by Appellant in regard to the citation herein are irrelevant.

Also as previously noted, Appellant places a great deal of emphasis on the Court of Appeals decision in Logan City v. Karen Thatcher, No. 880451. That case was not decided on the merits but rather based upon the Respondent Logan City's failure to file a brief or appear at oral arguments.

In construing the constitutionality of a statute or ordinance, a court should construe law so as to carry out the legislative intent while avoiding constitutional conflicts. In Re A Criminal Investigation Seventh District Court Number CS-1, 754 P.2d 633 (Utah 1988) An ordinance or statute will not be declared unconstitutional on account of vagueness if under any sensible interpretation of its language it can be given practical effect. Greaves v. State, 528 P.2d 803 (Utah 1974).

In ascertaining the constitutionality of a statute or ordinance, the following rules of construction should be applied:

- 1) A Legislative enactment is presumed to be valid and in conformity with the constitution. Trade

Commission v. Skaggs Drug Centers, Inc. 21 Utah 2d 431, 446

P.2d 958 (1968); Greaves v. State, supra.

2) The statute or ordinance should not be invalid unless it is shown beyond a reasonable doubt to be incompatible with some particular constitutional provision Miller v. State, 462 P.2d 421 (Alaska 1969).

3) The burden of showing invalidity of an ordinance or statute is upon the one who makes the challenge Trade Commission v. Skaggs Drug Centers, supra.

In State v. Packard, 122 Utah 369, 373, 250 P.2d 561, 563 (1952), it was recognized

that statutes should not be declared unconstitutional if there is any reasonable basis upon which they may be sustained as falling within the constitutional framework, and that a statute will not be held void for uncertainty if any sort of sensible, practical effect may be given.

In determining whether or not a statute or ordinance is vague, it must be sufficiently definite

(1) To inform persons of ordinary intelligence, who would be law abiding, what their conduct must be to conform to its requirements,

(2) To advise a defendant accused of violating it just what constitutes the offense with which he or she is charged, and

(3) To be susceptible of uniform interpretation and application by those charged with responsibility of apply and enforcing it. State v. Packard, supra, Greaves v. State, supra, State v. Owens, 638 P.2d 1182 (Utah, 1981).

In fact, it is the established policy of the Utah Supreme Court to construe statutory provisions whenever possible in a way to avoid invalidating them on constitutional grounds. Greaves v. State, supra.

For example, in State v. Lafferty, 749 P.2d 1239, 1260 (Utah 1988), the Utah Supreme Court imposed the requirement that juries be instructed to find that previous crimes of the defendant which have not resulted in convictions, introduced at a penalty phase, be proven beyond a reasonable doubt.

In State v. Wood, 648 P.2d 71, 83-84 (Utah), cert. denied, 459 US 988, 103 S. Ct 341, 74 L. Ed 2d 383 (1982), the Utah Supreme Court construed Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §76-3-207 to require proof beyond a reasonable doubt at the penalty phase of a capital case that the aggravating circumstances outweighed the mitigating circumstances, even though no specific burden of persuasion was provided in the statute.

In Re Criminal Investigation, 7th District Court No. Cs-1, 754 P.2d 633, 640-41 (Utah 1988), the Utah Supreme Court went to great lengths to save the constitutionality of the Subpoena Powers Act by reading into it a host of new provisions which simply were next put in by the Legislature.

The statutes herein, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) §77-7-18 through 77-7-21, state with sufficient clarity and conciseness: the right to issue citations on misdemeanors or infractions; the appearance required by citation; arrest for failure to appear; collection of bail amounts; disposition of fines and costs; service of the citation on defendant; filing in court; contents of citation; proceeding of the citation-voluntary forfeiture of bail; when an information is required